

**Town Clerk** 

Les Trigg

15 Station Road STONE ST15 8JP

Tel: 01785 619740

Email: clerk@stonetowncouncil.gov.uk

27 February 2023

Dear Councillor,

A meeting of the **TOWN COUNCIL** will be held in St Michael's Suite at the **Frank Jordan Centre**, **Lichfield Street**, **Stone**, on **TUESDAY 7 MARCH 2023** at **7:00pm** for consideration of the matters itemised in the following agenda.

Les Trigg Town Clerk

#### Agenda

- 1. To receive apologies for absence
- 2. Declarations of Interest and Requests for Dispensations
- 3. Representations from Members of the Public
- 4. To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the Meeting of the Town Council held on 14 February 2023, Minute Numbers C23/085 C23/095 (attached)
- 5. To receive the draft minutes and decisions of the under mentioned Committees:
  - a) General Purposes Committee meeting held on 7 February 2023, Minute Numbers GP23/148 GP23/171 (attached)

- b) Planning Consultative Committee meeting held on 14 February 2023, Minute Numbers PC23/055 PC23/060 (attached)
- 6. To receive the forthcoming Civic Announcements (attached).
- 7. To receive the Town Mayor's and Deputy Town Mayor's Reports of Engagements (attached).
- 8. Exclusion of the Press and Public

To resolve, pursuant to the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960, that the Public and Press be excluded from the meeting whilst the next items of business are discussed on the grounds that publicity would be prejudicial to public interest by reason of the confidential nature of the debate.

- 9. To receive the draft Confidential Minutes and decisions of the undermentioned Committees:
  - a) General Purposes Committee meeting held on 7 February 2023, Minute Numbers GP23/148, GP23/169, GP23/170 and GP23/171 (attached).

Members of the public are welcome to attend the Town Council meeting as observers and/or to make representations to the committee in accordance with the Council's scheme of public participation. Details of the scheme are displayed in the Council's notice boards and website.

#### **Stone Town Council**

# Minutes of the Meeting held in the Council Chamber at 15 Station Road, Stone, on Tuesday 14 February 2023

**PRESENT:** Councillor J. Powell in the Chair and

Councillors: K. Argyle, J. Davies, Mrs K. Dawson, I. Fordham, M. Hatton,

Mrs J. Hood, T. Kelt, R. Kenney, P. Leason and C. Thornicroft

Officers: L. Trigg and Mrs T. Williams

ABSENT: Councillors: A. Best, Mrs A. Burgess, Mrs L. Davies, M. Green, J. Hickling,

R. Townsend and S. Walley

Before the meeting began Councillor Mrs Jill Hood led prayers.

#### C23/085 Apologies

Apologies were received from Councillors: A. Best, Mrs L. Davies, M. Green, J. Hickling and R. Townsend.

#### C23/086 Declarations of Interest and Requests for Dispensations

None received

#### C23/087 Representations from Members of the Public

None

#### C23/088 Minutes

#### **RESOLVED:**

a) That the minutes of the meeting of the Town Council held on 13
 December 2022 (Minute Numbers C23/076 – C23/084, be approved as a correct record.

#### C23/089 Committee Minutes

#### **RESOLVED:**

a) The minutes of the General Purposes Committee meeting held on 13 December 2022 (Minute Numbers GP23/128 – GP23/147), were noted.

<sup>\*</sup> Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting. They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes.

- b) The minutes of the Planning Consultative Committee meeting held on 13 December 2022 (Minute Numbers PC23/043 PC23/048), were noted.
- c) The minutes of the Planning Consultative Committee meeting held on 17 January 2023 (Minute Numbers PC23/049 PC23/054), were noted with advice from the Town Clerk.

The Town Clerk advised the Committee that there had been a change to the minutes (since their issue with the agenda) to reflect inclusion of new planning applications that had been registered with the Borough Council but not yet received (in the form of consultation invitations) by the Town Council.

### C23/090 To consider the Council's Budget for 2023-24 and to set the Council Tax for the Year

The Town Council considered the Town Clerk's budget report\*, which was based on the recommendations of the General Purposes Committee on 7 February 2023.

The Town Council considered a Proposal\* on the 'Revenue Budget 2023-24 to 2025-26' including the budget, precept and Council Tax for 2023-24, indicative budgets for 2024-25 and 2025-26, and recommendation for the wording of the Council Tax leaflet.

The Town Clerk confirmed that the key points to note were the effects of inflation and in particular energy inflation which had been difficult to manage within the budget.

The Town Council accepted the wording of the Council Tax leaflet (to be produced by the Borough Council) with the following small adjustments: To add clarity to the sentence referencing the King's Coronation event (point 3, paragraph 3), and to state the provision of 'litter bins' rather than just dog bins (point 3, paragraph 5).

#### **RESOLVED:**

- The Budget recommended by the General Purposes Committee on 7<sup>th</sup>
  February 2023, and set out in the Clerk's report to this meeting and the
  attached detailed recommendations, is agreed.
- 2. The 2023-24 Council Tax for this Council's purposes should be £58.15 for a Band D property, an increase for the year of £1.64, with indicative Council Tax levels of £59.84 and £61.58 for the following two years. This would result in a precept on Stafford Borough Council for 2023-24 of

<sup>\*</sup> Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting. They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes.

£369,163. Local Council Tax Support Grant of £21,552 would be added to this.

3. The wording for the 2023-24 Council Tax leaflet should be:

"Stone Town Council provides services for the people and town of Stone.

These services include the provision of community facilities, such as the Frank Jordan and Stone Station community centres, allotment sites at Newcastle Road and Mount Road, and the Crown Meadow Nature Reserve and amphitheatre.

The 2023-24 budget, despite having to deal with excessive levels of inflation, especially in respect of energy costs, includes additional funding to provide further improvements at Crown Meadow and support for the King's Coronation event. This is in addition to the development and operation of a new Heritage Centre within the exciting redevelopment at Crown Wharf.

Investing in and working to promote a vibrant town and encourage visitors is a key Town Council priority. In order to support this, the Council organises regular events such as the Town Market and monthly Craft Market together with town centre events such as the Music Festival, Stone by the Sea, the Classic Car event and the St Georges Day celebration. Christmas lights are provided in the High Street and at Walton, with the Council's annual switch-on event being one of highlights of the town year. The High Street environment is enhanced by the Council's provision of hanging baskets and bunting along the High Street, and newly refurbished noticeboards and fingerposts throughout the town.

The Council provides bus shelters, benches, litter bins and dog bins throughout the area, and takes responsibility for the upkeep of many local amenities and planted areas. It also provides grants and other support to help charitable and community organisations such as the Stone Community Hub, supports various festivals, and Council staff supply regular support and advice to local residents.

By considering the impact of every planning application, the Council seeks to develop and conserve the town, and the approval of its Neighbourhood Plan in May 2021 will help the

<sup>\*</sup> Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting. They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes.

Council to shape and protect the future of Stone for years to come.

At its monthly meetings the Council welcomes questions from the public and sets aside time to listen and respond. Assistance with public questions will gladly be given by the Council's staff."

4. The Clerk is authorised to seek tenders/quotations, place orders and make payments in accordance with this budget, the Council's policies, and Financial Regulations.

### C23/091 <u>Local Government Transparency Code 2015</u> Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014

The information\* for Quarter ending 31 December 2022 was noted.

#### C23/092 <u>Civic Announcements</u>

The Civic Announcements, which had been previously circulated, were noted.

#### C23/093 Town Mayor's and Deputy Town Mayor's Reports of Engagements

The Town Mayor's and Deputy Town Mayor's reports of engagements, which had been previously circulated, were noted.

The Town Mayor drew the Committee's attention to the Charity Pig Race which had been a great success and had raised an impressive amount of money for his Charities.

The Town Mayor said that Christ Church's Advent Window Openings had again been wonderful through December 2022, and his and the Mayoress's visit to St Mary's Home on Christmas Day had been one they would never forget. They were exceedingly warmly welcomed by the staff and residents and found the occasion to be a happy, humbling and emotional experience.

The meeting was temporarily suspended and then reconvened after the Planning Consultative Committee meetings had taken place.

# C23/094 To resolve, pursuant to the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960, that the Public and Press be excluded from the meeting whilst the next items of business are discussed on the grounds that publicity would be prejudicial to public interest by reason of the confidential nature of the debate.

RESOLVED: To exclude the Press and Public from the next item of business.

<sup>\*</sup> Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting. They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes.

#### C23/095 Confidential Committee Minutes

a) The confidential Minutes of the General Purposes Committee meeting held on 13 December 2022, Minute Numbers GP23/128, GP23/145 and GP23/146 and GP23/147 were noted.

**TOWN MAYOR** 

<sup>\*</sup> Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting. They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes.

#### Stone Town Council – General Purposes Committee

# Minutes of the meeting held in the Council Chamber at 15 Station Road, Stone, on Tuesday 7 February 2023

**PRESENT:** Councillor R. Kenney in the Chair, and

Councillors: A. Best, J. Davies, Mrs J. Hood, T. Kelt, P. Leason, J. Powell,

C. Thornicroft, R. Townsend and S. Walley

Officers: L. Trigg and Mrs T. Williams

ABSENT: Councillors: K. Argyle, Mrs A. Burgess, Mrs L. Davies, Mrs K. Dawson, I. Fordham,

M. Green, M. Hatton and J. Hickling

#### GP23/148 Apologies

Apologies were received from Councillors: Mrs L. Davies, Mrs K. Dawson, I. Fordham, M. Green and J. Hickling

#### **GP23/149 Declarations of Interests**

None

#### **GP23/150** Requests for Dispensations

None

#### **GP23/151** To receive the report of the County Councillors

#### **County Councillor Mrs J. Hood**

The Chairman invited Councillor Mrs Hood to address the Committee.

#### Looked after children

Councillor Mrs Hood advised the Committee that as a County Councillor and Corporate Parent, she had been invited to attend a meeting of 'The Voice Project' which gives looked after children (whether adopted, fostered or living in a residential home) an opportunity to talk about how their care is going, including how their health plans should progress.

She said it was lovely to meet the two young people who attended the session. They were delightful and it was incredible to see how they were flourishing with the high-quality care they were receiving. She said she was very proud that in Staffordshire young people were looked after until they were 25 years of age (rather than the standard 18 years, which was the case in most other parts of the country).

Councillor Mrs Hood advised the Committee that 1300 children were currently being looked after in Staffordshire, many coming from challenging backgrounds. She asked that looked after children living in Stone are welcomed, and called for Councillors to spread the word that there was a shortage of foster carers in

<sup>\*</sup> Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting. They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes.

Staffordshire and the County Council were looking to appoint new recruits – young and mature.

#### **County Councillor I. Parry**

Councillor Parry was not in attendance at the meeting.

#### **GP23/152** To receive the report of Borough Councillors

There were no reports from Borough Councillors on this occasion.

#### **GP23/153** Representations from Members of the Public

None

#### **GP23/154** Minutes

**RESOLVED:** 

a) That the minutes of the General Purposes Committee meeting held on 13 December 2022 (Minute Numbers GP23/128 – GP23/147, be approved as a correct record.

#### **GP23/155** Minutes of Sub-Committees

- a) Tourism & Town Promotion Sub-Committee held on 15 November 2022 (Minute Numbers TTP23/027 – TTP23/036), that the draft minutes be noted, and the recommendations of the Sub-Committee contained in Minute Numbers TTP23/032 and TTP23/033 be adopted.
  - The recommendations contained in Minute Number TTP23/035 were considered as part of Minute Number GP23/158 (agenda item 11).
- b) Estates Sub-Committee held on 17 January 2023 (Minute Numbers EST23/028 EST23/035), that the draft minutes be noted.

The recommendations of the Sub-Committee contained in Minute Number EST23/032 were considered as part of Minute Number GP23/158 (agenda item 11).

#### GP23/156 Environment Sub-Committee – Budget 2023-24 to 2025-26

The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk\* (which had been attached to the agenda for the meeting) examining the requirements for the Environment Sub-Committee budget 2023-24 to 2025-26.

The General Purposes Committee had needed to consider the Environment Sub-Committee's budget because it had not been possible for an earlier meeting of the Sub Committee to take place.

The Committee reviewed the standstill budget and the amounts included for each service. It also considered other costs and savings when setting the budget for 2023-24 and future years.

<sup>\*</sup> Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting. They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes.

The Town Clerk advised the Sub-Committee that a number of items in the current year's budget required consideration along with consideration of the forward year's budget 2023-24.

The Committee considered a written budget proposal\* made by the Environment Sub-Committee Chairman in respect of the Environment Sub-Committee budget, which was distributed at the meeting.

RESOLVED: To accept the following items for consideration as part of the budget report later on the agenda:

- 1. The standstill budget set out in the Town Clerk's report is accepted, after making the adjustments set out below:
- 2. Provision of £2,000 is made for the investigation and, if necessary, removal of asbestos at Newcastle Road allotments.
- 3. Allotment fees be increased by 10% from April 2023.
- 4. At the Crown Meadow, the planned one-off works on Scrape 2 (£2,200) and the new information board (£1,500) should be halted, but additional annual funding should be provided for the removal of willow saplings (£500) and for grass cutting and collection in Scrape 1 (£500).
- 5. The unspent balance on the Environmental Initiatives budget should be reduced by £3,000 in the current year.
- 6. As a result of the above, the Sub-Committee's budget would be changed as follows compared to the standstill budget:

	£	
2022-23	6,700	Reduction
2023-24	3,000	Increase
2024-25	1,000	Increase
2025-26	1,000	Increase

RESOLVED: That the outstanding items for the current financial year, referred to in paragraph 5.a of the Town Clerk's report, be approved. This consisted of felling of the split tree at the Amphitheatre (£640), replacement of the Walton Roundabout "Lock Gate" (£400), replacing plants/filling gaps in town borders (£600), replacing plants/refurbishing Walton Roundabout (£600) and work on the scrapes and benches (£1,000).

#### GP23/157 Management Sub-Committee – Budget 2023-24 to 2025-26

The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk\* (which had been attached to the agenda for the meeting) examining the requirements for the Management Sub-Committee budget 2023-24 to 2025-26.

The General Purposes Committee had needed to consider the Management Sub-Committee's budget because it had not been possible for an earlier meeting of the Sub Committee to take place.

<sup>\*</sup> Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting. They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes.

The Committee reviewed the standstill budget and the amounts included for each service. It also considered other costs and savings when setting the budget for 2023-24 and future years.

The Committee considered a written budget proposal\* made by the Management Sub-Committee Chairman in respect of the Management Sub-Committee budget, which was distributed at the meeting.

RESOLVED: To accept the following items for consideration as part of the budget report later on the agenda:

- 1. That the standstill budget set out in the Town Clerk's report is accepted, after making the adjustments set out below:
- 2. That the low take-up of grants by outside bodies is reflected in a budget reduction of £3,000 in the current year and £4,300 per annum from 2023-24.
- 3. Usage of the Stone Helpline has reduced to a very low level. It is therefore proposed that this facility should now be drawn to a close.
- 4. An amount is included in the standstill budget for a proposed Stone Heroes award scheme. As this scheme has not yet commenced, it is recommended that this provision is removed.
- 5. Filling of the post of Events and Marketing Officer has been delayed. The saving from this delay has been removed from the budget, less an amount to fund re-advertising costs.
- 6. The next General Purposes Committee will be considering the provision of badges to be presented to past Mayor and Deputy Mayor's Consorts. It will be a decision for that Committee whether to support the proposal, but provision has been made for this in the current year, funded by a reduction in the Civic Regalia budget in future years.
- 7. As a result of the above, the Sub-Committee's budget would be reduced as follows compared to the standstill budget:

	£
2022-23	4,900
2023-24	7,770
2024-25	7,070
2025-26	7.070

#### **GP23/158** <u>2023-24 Budget Recommendation to the Council</u>

The Committee considered the report of the Town Clerk\* (which had been circulated with the agenda for the meeting) examining the budget and precept level for the financial year 2023-24 for recommendation to the Council.

The Town Clerk advised the Committee that having considered the recommendations from all Sub-Committees, it was now necessary for the Committee to recommend an appropriate budget to the Council on 14 February 2023.

<sup>\*</sup> Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting. They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes.

The Town Clerk advised the Committee that the key budget issue was the extreme levels of inflation being forecast and its effect on both costs and the increases that would need to be made in charges for services (referencing paragraph 10c in the report).

He said that he would prefer reserves to be maintained at six months of typical spending, but accepted that with the forecast level of inflation this was difficult to achieve in the short to medium term. For this budget his recommendation was therefore that reserves could be reduced to three months of spending as a minimum, whilst looking to reinstate the value of reserves as soon as there was an opportunity to do so. The estimate for the end of the current year was that the Council would have around 3.8 months' spending in reserves.

The Town Clerk asked the Committee to consider whether it agreed the standstill budget proposed, the adjustments that needed to be made bearing in mind the recommendations of the Sub-Committees, and the Council Tax and precept levels to be recommended at to the Council.

The Committee considered a written budget proposal\* made by the Chairman in respect of the budget to be recommended to the Council, which was distributed at the meeting.

The Chairman advised the committee that the proposals represented a Council Tax increase for Town Council purposes of £1.64 for a Band D property in 2023-24 - around 3 pence a week.

RESOLVED: To recommend to the Council that:

1. The Town Council's standstill budget for 2023-24 to 2025-26 should be as set out in the Clerk's report supplemented by the following additions/amendments:

#### a. Estates:

- Fees and charges at Community Centres to be increased by 25%, with a 10% discount for community groups and similar non-business usage.
- ii. Maintenance to be ceased on bus shelters where no bus route is served, with a view to removing these shelters once funding becomes available.
- iii. No further spending to be undertaken on the Joules Clock due to the prohibitive cost.
- iv. The unspent building maintenance provision of £10,000 in the current year to be removed from the budget.

#### b. Environment:

i. A provision of £2,000 to be made for the investigation of the possible presence of asbestos at Newcastle Road allotments.

<sup>\*</sup> Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting. They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes.

- ii. The planned one-off works on Scrape 2 (£2,200) and the new information board (£1,500) should not be undertaken, but additional annual funding should be provided for the removal of willow saplings (£500) and for grass cutting and collection at Scrape 1 (£500).
- iii. The unspent balance on the Environmental Initiatives budget should be reduced by £3,000 in the current year.

#### c. Tourism and Town Promotion:

- An additional budget of £2,000 should be provided in 2023-24 for the King's Coronation Celebrations.
- ii. The events budget should be reduced by £2,000 per annum from 2024-25.

#### d. Management:

- The unspent sum of £3,000 should be removed from the Grants budget in the current year, and a reduction of £4,300 per annum made in subsequent years.
- ii. Having served its purpose admirably, the Stone Helpline is now little used and can no longer be financially justified. The service should therefore be ceased, which is estimated to produce a saving of £900 in 2023-24 and with a further saving of £1,200 in each subsequent year.
- iii. The proposed Stone Heroes Awards Scheme has not been implemented. Budget provision of £1,300 per year can therefore be removed from the current year onwards.
- iv. There has been a delay in filling the Marketing and Events Coordinator post, which will save £1,400 in the current year and £1,000 in 2023-24, net of the costs of re-advertising. This should be removed from the budget.
- v. A provision of £800 should be made for the purchase of Consort's badges, subject to a reduction of £270 per annum from the Civic Regalia budget. This is to provide a contingency to allow separate consideration of this item by the Committee.

#### e. General Purposes:

- i. The inflation provision should be reduced by £310 in 2023-24, £590 in 2024-25 and £610 in 2025-26 to reflect the impact of the above changes.
- 2. As a consequence of the above, the 2023-24 Council Tax for this Council's purposes should be £58.15 for a Band D property, an increase for the year of £1.64, with indicative Council Tax levels of £59.84 and £61.58 for the

<sup>\*</sup> Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting. They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes.

following two years. This would result in a precept on Stafford Borough Council for 2023-24 of £369,163. Local Council Tax Support Grant of £21,552 would be added to this.

The Committee thanked the Town Clerk for his work and guidance on the budget recommendations.

The Committee also thanked the Chairman of each Sub-Committee for working together in this challenging economic environment and to have amicably agreed reductions in their budgets.

#### **GP23/159** Grants to Local Organisations

The Committee considered requests for grant aid from local organisations.

The following organisations met the eligibility criteria within the Council's grants policy:

#### a. Organisation: Stone Choral Society

Amount Requested: £250

**Reason**: To assist in determining the feasibility and popularity of a series of talks/masterclasses (running until June) which would if successful be able to run again.

RESOLVED: To decline the award of a grant to Stone Choral Society due to the limited funds remaining in the budget for 2022-23.

#### b. Organisation: Stone Outward Division Rangers

**Amount Requested: £500** 

**Reason:** To support the costs of an increased annual subscription fee and to access activities provided by the Division.

RESOLVED: To decline the award of a grant to Stone Outward Division Rangers due to the limited funds remaining in the budget for 2022-23.

#### c. Organisation: Stone Lions Club

Amount Requested: £500 Reason: Prostate testing

RESOLVED: To award a grant of £500 to Stone Lions Club.

The following organisation did not meet the eligibility criteria within the Council's grants policy and no proposer/seconder came forward to instigate a discussion about making an award of a grant:

#### a. Organisation: Windmills Charity

Amount Requested: £1,000

**Reason:** To support Memory making sessions and activities.

**Eligibility Criteria not met**:

- i. Amount of grant requested.
- ii Level of reserves.

<sup>\*</sup> Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting. They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes.

#### **GP23/160** Review of Standing Orders

The Committee undertook to review the Council's Standing Orders\* which had been circulated with the agenda for the meeting. The document had been reviewed by the Town Clerk, who had not proposed any changes or revisions to its content.

RESOLVED: To defer consideration of the revised Standing Orders until the next meeting of the Committee in accordance with normal practice.

#### **GP23/161** Review of Financial Regulations

The Committee undertook to review the Council's Financial Regulations\* which had been circulated with the agenda for the meeting. The document had been reviewed by the Town Clerk, who had not proposed any changes or revisions to its content.

RESOLVED: To defer consideration of the revised Financial Regulations until the next meeting of the Committee in accordance with normal practice.

#### GP23/162 Meeting Schedule for 2023-24

The Committee considered a proposed programme of meetings and events\* for the period May 2023 to April 2024.

The Town Clerk advised the Committee that the meetings over December 2023 and January 2024 had been arranged to repeat the way they had been organised this year which seemed to have worked better in respect of budgetary timeframes.

RESOLVED: To approve the circulated schedule of meetings and events dates which included incorporating the Mayor Making ceremony into the Civic Sunday Church Service on 9 July 2023.

#### GP23/163 Past Consort Badges

The Committee considered the report of the Town Clerk\*, which had been attached to the agenda for the meeting, considering whether outgoing Mayor and Deputy Mayor's Consorts should be presented with 'Past Consort' and 'Past Deputy Consort' badges at the end of their term of office.

The Town Clerk circulated a sample Past Consort badge design for Councillors to consider which had been costed at round £80 when purchasing a minimum quantity of five of each design. He said that if supported, an additional budget of £800 would be needed in the current year for the purchase of an initial stock of badges, which had been provided for in the budget recommendations to Council considered earlier in the meeting.

RESOLVED: That the Town Council should purchase and present 'Past Consort' and 'Past Deputy Consort' badges annually to commemorate their year in office but that alternative designs, considered more suitable for wearing by ladies and men, are brought back to the Committee for consideration.

<sup>\*</sup> Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting. They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes.

#### **GP23/164** Review of Staffordshire County Council Divisions

The Committee considered a Boundary Commission for England review of division boundaries for Staffordshire County Council.

A link to information on the Review had been provided with the agenda for the meeting. The Committee noted that the closing date for consultation responses was 20 March 2023.

The Committee also noted the invitation from Staffordshire Parish Councils' Association to attend a briefing (on Thursday 16 February 2023) on the review of Division Boundaries in Staffordshire and Councillors were invited to join the online Teams session.

RESOLVED: That the Boundary Commission for England's Review of Staffordshire County Divisions be brought forward to the next meeting of the Committee.

#### **GP23/165** Town Council Payments

RESOLVED: To note the list\* of Town Council payments made during the period 1 to 31 December 2022.

#### **GP23/166** Update from Working Groups:

#### **Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group**

Councillor Mrs Hood reported that the Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group had not met.

#### **Stone Heritage Centre Steering Group**

Councillor Kenney advised the Committee that an update would be given by the Town Clerk in the confidential section of the agenda.

#### **Engagement with Young People**

No meeting had taken place.

### GP23/167 To receive reports from Town Councillors on attendance at meetings of local organisations and outside bodies as a representative of the Town Council

#### **Stone Area Parish Liaison Group**

Councillor Davies advised the Committee that a good meeting of the Liaison Group had taken place on 25 January 2023 which had been well attended by local councils including Fulford Parish Council, one of the larger parishes in the area.

The notes for the Liaison Group meeting in October 2022 had been attached to the agenda for the meeting.

The next meeting of Stone Area Parish Liaison Group would be held after the parish elections in May 2023.

#### **Stone ATC**

Councillor Davies informed the Committee that a meeting of the Air Cadets Welfare Committee had taken place on 31 January 2023 and the Squadron were doing very well with 34 cadets which was an excellent number. The Annual General Meeting (previously postponed) would be taking place on 20 March 2023.

<sup>\*</sup> Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting. They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes.

He said the current Commanding Officer was moving to a new role and a new Commanding Officer will soon be appointed.

#### **Age Concern Stone & District**

Councillor Thornicroft advised the Committee that no meeting had taken place.

#### **Stafford & Stone Access Group**

Councillor Kelt advised the Committee that the next meeting of the Access Group would be held on 20 February 2023.

#### **Stone Common Plot Trustees**

Councillor Mrs Hood advised the Committee that no meeting of the Stone Common Plot Trustees had taken place.

#### **Stone Community Hub Liaison Group**

Councillor Mrs Hood advised the Committee that no meeting of the Liaison Group had taken place.

#### **SPCA Executive Committee**

Councillor Green was not available to provide a report.

#### **Stone Traders Group Directors' Meeting**

Councillor Mrs Hood advised the Committee that no meeting had taken place.

The Town Clerk advised the Committee that he had received some dates for meetings of Stone Traders Group Directors' and would be circulating the details to the nominated Councillors.

#### **GP23/168** Exclusion of the Press and Public

To resolve, pursuant to the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960, that the Public and Press be excluded from the meeting whilst the next items of business are discussed on the grounds that publicity would be prejudicial to public interest by reason of the confidential nature of the debate.

RESOLVED: to exclude the Press and Public from the next items of business.

#### **GP23/169** Confidential Minutes

**RESOLVED:** 

That the Confidential Minutes of the General Purposes Committee meeting held on 13 December 2022, Minute Numbers GP23/128, GP23/145, GP23/146 and GP23/147 be approved.

#### **GP23/170** Confidential Minutes and Recommendations of Sub-Committees

a) Estates Sub-Committee Meeting held on 17 January 2023, Minute Numbers: EST23/028, EST23/034 and EST23/035.

RESOLVED: To note the minutes of the Sub-Committee.

<sup>\*</sup> Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting. They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes.

#### **GP23/171** Heritage Centre

The Committee considered an update on the Stone Heritage Centre building works tendering process and the appointment of a main contractor for this work.

The Town Clerk advised the Committee that he was currently awaiting a report from the Council's mechanical and electrical engineering consultant.

**CHAIRMAN** 

<sup>\*</sup> Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting. They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes.

#### **Stone Town Council – Planning Consultative Committee**

# Minutes of the meeting held in the Council Chamber at 15 Station Road, Stone, on Tuesday 14 February 2023

**PRESENT:** Councillor T. Kelt in the Chair, and

Councillors: K. Argyle, J. Davies, Mrs K. Dawson, I. Fordham, M. Hatton,

Mrs J. Hood, R. Kenney, P. Leason, J. Powell and C. Thornicroft

Officers: L. Trigg and Mrs T. Williams

ABSENT: Councillors: A. Best, Mrs A. Burgess, Mrs L. Davies, M. Green, J. Hickling,

R. Townsend and S. Walley

#### PC23/055 Apologies

Apologies were received from Councillors: A. Best, Mrs L. Davies, M. Green, J. Hickling and R. Townsend

#### PC23/056 <u>Declarations of Interest and Requests for Dispensations</u>

Councillor Mrs Hood confirmed that, as a member of Stafford Borough Council's Planning Committee, she would not speak or vote on the planning applications listed on the agenda.

#### PC23/057 Representations from Members of the Public

None received.

#### PC23/058 Minutes

**RESOLVED:** 

That the minutes of the Planning Consultative Committee meeting held on 17 January 2023 (Minute Numbers PC23/049 – PC23/055), be approved as a correct record following advice from the Town Clerk.

The Town Clerk advised the Committee that there had been a change to the minutes (since their issue with the agenda) to reflect inclusion of new planning applications that had been registered with the Borough Council but not yet received (in the form of consultation invitations) by the Town Council.

#### PC23/059 Planning Applications

Application Number – 22/36893/FUL

Applicant – Mr M. Hepburn (23.5 Degrees Limited)

Location – Dan's Motorcycle Showroom, The Fillybrooks, Stone

Development – Installation of canopy over drive thru collection window

**Observations:** The Town Council has no objections to the installation of a canopy in principle but does have concerns about missing details which changes the development when compared with the application that was first presented to the Borough Council.

There is nothing included in the application about lighting which the business is not likely to be able to operate without. Light spill was recognised as being an issue on the previous application so if the canopy is lit there is likely to be an issue with that. The application includes a spectrum of colours but does not indicate the colour(s) the business is going to adopt.

The Town Council would like the applicant to provide clarification on the missing details in respect of the use of lighting and the colour scheme.

Application Number – 22/36511/HOU
Applicant – Mr & Mrs R. Norris
Location – 6 Phillips Close, Aston Lodge, Stone
Development – Contemporary rear extension and alterations to boundary treatments

**Observations:** The Town Council has no objections but asks that the Case/Planning Officer looks at the boundary line (consisting of a straight line and a hedge on the neighbour's side of the boundary) which gives the impression that it has changed, to ensure that it is valid.

Application Number – 22/36506/HOU
Applicant – Jenna James
Location – 4 Leacroft, Aston Lodge, Stone
Development – First Floor bedroom extension over existing family area

**Observations:** No objections

Application Number – 22/36324/FUL (amended plans)

Applicant - Mr C. Jaram

Location – Land off Lichfield Road, Stone

**Development** – Vary/remove condition 12 (closing lay-by), 13 (pedestrian crossing) and 20 (number of dwellings) on 18/27783/OUT. An outline planning application seeking planning permission for affordable (local) housing and a local shopping and service centre including the provision of a local food store with all matters reserved for later approval.

Amendments – The following revised condition 13 is suggested: 'No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into use unless and until a new Zebra Crossing to the West of the site, extended scheme of street lighting to the West of the site and the relocation of the 30 mph speed sign also to the West of the site have all been installed in accordance with details which shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority beforehand'.

**Observations:** No objections

Application Number - 22/36624/HOU

**Applicant** – Mr Smith

Location – 24 Springwood Drive, Stone

**Development** – Two storey side and single storey rear extension

**Observations:** Application not yet received from the Borough Council

Application Number – 22/36669/HOU

Applicant – Mr & Mrs A. & J. Forrester

Location – 26 Trinity Drive, Stone

Development – Single storey lounge extension to rear.

**Observations:** Application not yet received from the Borough Council

Application Number - 21/35277/FUL

Applicant - K. Hand

**Location** – 6 Radford Street, Stone

**Development** – front elevation alterations to include new storefront at ground floor.

Observations: Application not yet received from the Borough Council

Application Number – 22/36754/HOU Applicant – Mr J. Henson Location – 14 Meaford Avenue, Stone Development – Rear extension

**Observations:** Application not yet received from the Borough Council

Application Number – 22/36807/HOU

**Applicant** – Mr L. Boulton

Location – 21 Airdale Road, Stone

**Development** – Front entrance relocation with glazed units, rear extension in-fill, balcony to rear accessed from bedrooms, general internal alterations, change existing car port into an enclosed garage.

Observations: Application not yet received from the Borough Council

**Application Number** – 22/36029/HOU

Applicant – Mr J. Harding

**Location** – 37 The Avenue, Stone

**Development** – Reinstatement of iron railings to the top of the front boundary wall, plus iron gate.

**Observations:** Application not yet received from the Borough Council

PC23/060 To note the following items considered under delegated powers where no objections were forwarded to Stafford Borough Council due to no Member asking for the item to be considered by a special meeting of the Committee.

None

#### **CHAIRMAN**

## STONE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 7 MARCH 2023

#### **CIVIC ANNOUNCEMENTS**

#### **Town Mayor**

Wednesday 8 March 2023 Borough Mayor's Valuation Evening

Sunday 12 March 2023 Church Service to commemorate the Bicentenary of the Death of

the Earl St Vincent

Saturday 25 March 2023 Biddulph Town Council's 'Textile & Craft Fair' followed by the

History Wardrobe Presentation 'Silk & Roses'

Saturday 1 April Town Mayor's Street Collection

#### **Deputy Mayor**

No events for this period

**TOWN MAYOR** 

#### MAYOR'S REPORT – to 26 February 2023

#### Saturday 11<sup>th</sup> February – Stone Lion's annual dinner

The Mayoress and I were honoured to be invited to the annual Stone Lion's Dinner at the Stone House Hotel. We saw Lions who have become friends and met many from other local chapters. I spoke and talked about the wonderful work that they do and how Stone is a better place for their actions. Whether raising money, holding events for local children or running their now famous, human fruit machine on market day. Stone really is blessed when we hear the Lion's roar.

#### Sunday 26th February – Service of Commemoration for Flt Lt R N Stubbs

We joined the Mayor and Mayoress of Stafford, members of the RAF and other guests to remember fallen service men but most of all to remember Flt Lt Richard 'Dickie' Stubbs of Stone. A young man who answered the call of his country when the 2<sup>nd</sup> World War started. A young man who joined the RAF as a bomber pilot and who successfully flew over 60 missions. Regrettably dying on a training flight, but not before saving the rest of the crew and guiding the plane to a safe crash site. Like so many, a true hero and a true son of Stone. We were all honoured to meet his descendant, who fondly referred to him as Uncle Dickie. The service was a wonderful time to be able to remember Stone's fallen and for the community to come together.

#### **DEPUTY TOWN MAYOR'S REPORT – to 26 February 2023**

No report for this period.